
OPEN MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING 
 GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION LANDSCAPE COMMITTEE* 

Wednesday, June 8, 2022 – 1:30 p.m. 
BOARD ROOM/VIRTUAL MEETING 

Laguna Woods Village  
24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, CA 

Laguna Woods Village owners/residents are welcome to participate in all open 
committee meetings and submit comments or questions for virtual meetings 
using one of three options: 

1. Join the meeting in-person in the Community Center Board Room.

2. Join the meeting via Zoom at https://zoom.us/j/99225095454. Please “Raise
Your Hand” during the agenda item you would like to speak to.  If you have an
item that is NOT on the agenda, please “Raise Your Hand” during the Member
Comments agenda item.

3. Via email to meeting@vmsinc.org any time before the meeting is scheduled
to begin or during the meeting. Please use the name GRF Landscape
Committee in the subject line of the email. Name and unit number must be
included.

NOTICE AND AGENDA 
This Meeting May Be Recorded 

1. Call to Order
2. Acknowledgment of Media
3. Approval of the Agenda
4. Approval of Meeting Report for March 9, 2022
5. Chair Remarks
6. Department Head Update

a. Update on Master Control Irrigation System
b. Discuss Village Tree Signage

Consent: 
None 

Reports 
7. Update on the Creek

https://zoom.us/j/99225095454
file://grf-fs2/FS$/Committee%20AGENDAS/20%20Agendas/United/meeting@vmsinc.org


Items for Discussion and Consideration 
8. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda)
9. Response to Member Comments
10. Landscape Supervisor to Discuss Grounds Maintenance – Angel De La Torres

Concluding Business: 
11. Committee Member Comments
12. Date of Next Meeting – Wednesday, September 14, 2022 at 1:30 p.m.
13. Adjournment

Juanita Skillman, Chair 
Kurt Wiemann, Staff Officer 

Jayanna Abolmoloki, Landscape Administrative Assistant 
Telephone: 949-268-2565 

*A quorum of the GRF Board, or more, may also be present at the meeting.



Agenda Item #4
Page 1 of 3



Agenda Item #4
Page 2 of 3



Agenda Item #4
Page 3 of 3





RESOLUTION 90-06- 97 (Initial resolution which was superseded 
by resolution below) 

WHEREAS, tree signs throughout the Community vary in different shapes, 
sizes & colors, and the GRF Landscape Committee has found it necessary 
to establish one sign standard; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 7, 2006 that the Board 
of Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts the policy of limiting any tree 
signage to a 3” x 5” size, with white lettering on a black background using 
only the botanical and common names of the tree and the country of origin; 
and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the corporation to carry out the purpose of 
this resolution. 

RESOLUTION 90-14-20 

Policy for Tree Signage 

WHEREAS, tree signs throughout the Community vary in different shapes, 
sizes & colors, and the GRF Landscape Committee has found it necessary 
to establish one sign standard; 

WHEREAS, this Corporation also recognizes the need to establish a policy 
to streamline installation requirements for tree labeling; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, May 6, 2014, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts the following standard: 

1. No one may attach anything to GRF property without prior approval.
2. Begin by contacting the managing agent prior to installation(s).
3. Tree trunks must be at least four inches in diameter.
4. The label must be limited to a 3” x 5” size, with white lettering on a

black background using only the botanical and common names of the
tree and the country of origin.  No names of persons or organizations
may appear on any label.

5. Mount with only a galvanized steel nail leaving a two inch space
between the trunk of the tree and the end of the nail.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that this resolution shall become in full force and 
effect on May 6, 2014; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 90-06-97 adopted on November 7, 
2006, is hereby superseded and canceled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the corporation to carry out the purpose of 
this resolution.  

Agenda Item #6b
Page 1 of 1





STAFF REPORT 
___________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: June 8, 2022 
FOR:  Landscape Committee 
SUBJECT: Aliso Creek Update 
___________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive and File 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2014, The Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods (GRF) entered into a Streambed 
Alteration Agreement (Agreement) with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
(CDFW) due to the construction of the pedestrian bridge located in Aliso Park (Attachment 
1).  

The creek area is considered a natural riparian habitat and is subject to the regulations 
put forth by several government agencies, with CDFW being the lead agency. The 
agreement requires annual biological monitoring of the area directly downstream of the 
bridge. The agreement stipulated that the monitoring of that area should continue for a 
minimum of five years or until GRF meets success criteria set forth in the agreement. The 
criteria for that area has been met, therefore, the annual biologist monitoring of the area 
just south of the bridge is no longer required. However, the prescribed maintenance shall 
continue in perpetuity. 

On March 10, 2021, the GRF Landscape Committee approved an unbudgeted operating 
expense of $13,534 to perform additional cattail clearing within the creek.  

DISCUSSION: 

Each year, the Landscape Department has several main objectives in Aliso Creek; control 
weeds, both native and non-native, and successfully meet the requirements of the 
mitigation area. 

Guidelines are set by the regulating agencies governing as to when and how maintenance 
activities can take place within the limits of the entire creek bed.  

Work within the creek bed, such as removing native growth cattails, can normally only 
occur outside of the typical native bird nesting season, which occurs annually between 
February 1 and August 31. Working with wildlife biologists, staff can now remove the 
cattails on three other occasions during the year.  Prior to starting the additional work 
period, a biologist must first perform a thorough survey of the area, checking for nesting 
birds, California Pond Turtles, and other wildlife. If any wildlife or nests are observed, 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 1 of 38



buffer zones are created in which no work can be performed. Staff can then proceed, 
under the guidance of biologists, to ensure there is no disturbance of the wildlife. 

The annual maintenance within the streambed consists of staff trimming cattails from the 
creek bed and trimming the branches on the lower third of the native trees along the bank. 
The cattails cannot be removed completely. Cattail trimming is limited to cutting by hand, 
without disturbing the stream bed, and can only be cut one foot above the waterline. The 
use of herbicides and plant growth regulators is prohibited on native plant material. 

In early November 2021, GRF applied to CDFW to modify the current agreement to permit 
the removal of cattails to create a five to eight-foot channel in the center of the creek to 
increase water flow and decrease storm damage. On November 22, 2021, staff received 
notice from CDFW that the current agreement could not be modified in the manner 
requested. 

On February 18, 2022, staff submitted another request to CDFW (Attachment 2) to modify 
the cattail removal process outlined in the original agreement. Cattails are considered 
native plants and the original agreement permitted only the hand removal of native plants 
to one foot above the water line. Since cattails have dense subterranean rhizome 
systems, they regrow very quickly.  

The agreement also prevents disturbance of the streambed for any reason; digging out 
the roots is not an option. The new request outlines a detailed herbicide use plan, which 
would, in time, keep the center section of the stream open and flowing. This would reduce 
stagnation, reduce storm damage, increase the health of native species, and vastly 
increase the aesthetic of the creek. This request is still under review. 

Starting on April 18, 2022, and completed on April 22, 2022, staff cleared cattails and 
non-native plant material from the creek using hand tools (Attachment 2). Since the work 
was performed during active nesting season, a wildlife biologist was on site when crews 
were working. The biologist observed Red-Eared Slider turtles and thought they saw the 
Southwestern Pond turtle, but could not confirm identity. They believe pond turtle(s) are 
still present and none were disturbed. 

Numerous birds were observed, displaying territorial behaviors, foraging, carrying nesting 
material, and flying through vegetation. Active nests were found for the following birds; 
Song Sparrow (Melospiza melodia), Black Phoebe (Sayornis nigricans), and Common 
Yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas) (3). One-hundred-foot buffer zones were created around 
active nests, leaving them undisturbed. Most of the cattails were cut down to water level, 
patches of cattails were left within Aliso Creek and around the ponds to provide habitat 
for wildlife and nesting birds. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 

None 

Prepared By:      Kurt Wiemann, Director of Landscape Services 

Reviewed By:            Eve Morton, Landscape Coordinator 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 2 of 38



ATTACHMENT(S) 

ATTACHMENT 1: Streambed Alteration Agreement 

ATTACHMENT 2: Monitoring Report 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 3 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 4 of 38

Attachment 1
Streambed Alteration Agreement



Agenda Item #7 
Page 5 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 6 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 7 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 8 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 9 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 10 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 11 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 12 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 13 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 14 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 15 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 16 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 17 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 18 of 38



Agenda Item #7 
Page 19 of 38

Attachment 2
Monitoring Report



DAILY MONITORING REPORT 

PROJECT & MONITOR INFORMATION 
Project Number:  20905 Date: April 18, 2022 

Project Name: Laguna Woods Village Start time: 0645 

Monitor(s): Mauricio Gomez and Jessica Calvillo End time: 1500 

WEATHER CONDITIONS 
START 

Temperature (°F): 50 Wind speed (mph): 0 Cloud Cover (%): 5 Precipitation (%): 0 

END 
Temperature (°F): 76 Wind speed (mph): 0 Cloud Cover (%): 1 Precipitation (%): 0 

SITE INFORMATION 
Site: Aliso Creek in Laguna Woods 

Site Description: The project is located within and adjacent to Aliso Creek, in the County of 
Orange, California. The creek is surrounded by emergent marsh vegetation 
such as cattails (Typha spp.), western ragweed (Ambrosia psilostachya), 
white sweet clover (Melilotus albus) and fleabane (Pulicaria sp.), among 
others. Non-native vegetation included Bromus spp., and Spanish sunflower 
(Pulicaria paludosa).  

Foreman/Superintendent: Hilario Contact info: 951-237-3973 

Crew: 

DESCRIPTION OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 
• Biologist monitored the crew during routine maintenance activities which included trimming of

cattails within the creek and clearing of non-native species from the banks of the creek and on the
upper terraces adjacent to the creek. Tools utilized during routine maintenance activities included
hand blades, weed whippers, and hedge trimmers. No heavy machinery was utilized inside of Aliso
Creek.

• Crew began maintenance activities north of Avenida Sevilla at the most upstream end working their
way towards ponding area #1.

BIOLOGICAL OBSERVATIONS 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 20 of 38



• A clearance survey was conducted for nesting birds and the southwestern pond turtle (Acinemys
pallida; SWPT) prior to maintenance activities of the Project area. No SWPT were observed.

• One new nest was discovered during the clearance survey.
o Common yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas) nest 1 (COYE Nest_01): feeding nestlings

 A pair of common yellowthroats were observed entering the same location within
five minutes. After further observation, the pair was observed gathering food within
approximately 100 feet and delivering it to the same location. The biologist
approached the nest and noticed nestlings inside of the nest. The biologist
immediately backed away and a 50-foot buffer was established around the nest. The
nest is located on a Spanish sunflower approximately 1.5 feet off the ground and 40
feet east of Aliso Creek.  GPS Location: 33.597804, -117.709859

• Patches of cattails were left within Aliso Creek and around the ponds to provide habitat for wildlife
and nesting birds.

• Bird activity was moderate throughout the day. Individuals were observed displaying territorial
behaviors, foraging, carrying nesting material, and flying through vegetation.

• A final sweep was conducted at the end of the workday, and no SWPT were observed.

CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
• A biological monitor is recommended during the maintenance activities located adjacent to active

nesting bird nests and within SWPT habitat (south of Avenida Sevilla bridge).

Species Observed: Allen’s hummingbird, American crow, black phoebe, bushtit, common raven, common 
yellowthroat, great egret, hooded oriole, house finch, lesser goldfinch, mallard, Nuttall’s woodpecker, red-
shouldered hawk, ruby-crowned kinglet, song sparrow, spotted towhee, western bluebird, Wilson’s 
warbler, yellow-rumped warbler, red-eared slider, bullfrog, pacific chorus frog. 
Sensitive Species Observed: None 
Other Sensitive Biological Resources Observed: None 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 21 of 38



DAILY MONITORING PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

Photo 1. 

General overview of maintenance 
activities at Aliso Creek. Photo is 
facing southwest. 

 

Photo 2. 

General location of the new COYE 
Nest_01 east of Aliso Creek. Photo 
is facing north. 

 

Photo 3. 

General overview of post-
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing southwest. 

 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 22 of 38



 
 
 

 
DAILY MONITORING REPORT 

 

PROJECT & MONITOR INFORMATION 
Project Number:  20905 Date:  April 19, 2022 

Project Name:  Laguna Woods Village Start time:  0645 

Monitor(s):  Mauricio Gomez  End time:  1500 

WEATHER CONDITIONS 
START 

Temperature (°F): 58 Wind speed (mph): 0 Cloud Cover (%): 20 Precipitation (%): 0 

END 
Temperature (°F): 73 Wind speed (mph): 3-5 Cloud Cover (%): 0 Precipitation (%): 0 

 
SITE INFORMATION 

Site:  Aliso Creek in Laguna Woods 

Site Description:  The project is located within and adjacent to Aliso Creek, in the County of 
Orange, California. The creek is surrounded by emergent marsh vegetation 
such as cattails (Typha spp.), western ragweed (Ambrosia psilostachya), 
white sweet clover (Melilotus albus) and fleabane (Pulicaria sp.), among 
others. Non-native vegetation included Bromus spp., and Spanish sunflower 
(Pulicaria paludosa). 

Foreman/Superintendent: Hilario Contact info: 951-237-3973 

Crew:   

 
DESCRIPTION OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 

• Biologist monitored the crew during routine maintenance activities which included trimming of 
cattails within the creek and clearing of non-native species from the banks of the creek and on the 
upper terraces adjacent to the creek. Tools utilized during routine maintenance activities included 
hand blades, weed whippers, and hedge trimmers. No heavy machinery was utilized inside of Aliso 
Creek.  

• Maintenance activities continued towards ponding area #1.   
BIOLOGICAL OBSERVATIONS 

• An environmental awareness training was conducted by Joanna Kipper prior to starting maintenance 
activities for the day.  

Agenda Item #7 
Page 23 of 38



• A clearance survey was conducted for nesting birds and the southwestern pond turtle (Acinemys 
pallida; SWPT) prior to maintenance activities of the Project area. No SWPT were observed.   

• One new nest was discovered during the clearance survey.  
o Black phoebe (Sayornis nigricans) nest 1 (BLPH Nest_01): nest building 

 A black phoebe individual was observed collecting material and was then observed 
going under the pedestrian bridge north of Avenida Sevilla (Photo 2). The biologist 
looked under the bridge and noticed a mud nest directly under the bridge. The nest 
appeared to be approximately 35% complete. Multiple community residents were 
observed walking across the bridge; however, the black phoebe was not disturbed 
by human activity or maintenance vehicles. No maintenance activities occurred near 
the nest on this day. GPS Location: 33.600174, -117.707346 

• One active nest was observed during monitoring.  
o Song sparrow (Melospiza melodia) nest 1 (SOSP Nest_01): incubating 

 An active song sparrow nest was observed within the cattails during maintenance 
activities. The crew was cutting the cattails working their way towards ponding area 
#1 and discovered the nest at the base of cattails hidden within the Spanish 
sunflower (Photo 3). The nest contained three eggs and is in the incubating stage. 
The crew notified the biologist. After the biologist arrived at the nest location, a 100-
foot buffer was established, and the nest was monitored. The crew was then 
relocated to an area downstream of the nest outside of the 100-foot buffer. After 
15 minutes of monitoring, a song sparrow individual was observed bringing nesting 
material to the nest but was observed leaving within one minute. A song sparrow 
pair was then observed foraging in the vicinity, approximately 10 feet away, 
however, no additional activity was observed within the nest. The nest is located 
within Aliso Creek just east of the bathrooms and the large sycamore tree. GPS 
Location: 33.601040, -117.705190 

• Patches of cattails were left within Aliso Creek and around the ponds to provide habitat for wildlife 
and nesting birds.  

• Bird activity was moderate throughout the day. Individuals were observed displaying territorial 
behaviors, foraging, carrying nesting material, and flying through vegetation.   

• A final sweep was conducted at the end of the workday, and no SWPT were observed.  

CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
• A biological monitor is recommended during the maintenance activities located adjacent to active 

nesting bird nests and within SWPT habitat (south of Avenida Sevilla bridge). 

Species Observed: Allen’s hummingbird, Anna’s hummingbird, American crow, ash-throated flycatcher, 
black phoebe, bushtit, common yellowthroat, great egret, house finch, lesser goldfinch, mallard, song 
sparrow, Nuttall’s woodpecker, red-shoulder hawk, scaly breasted munia, spotted towhee, Towsend’s 
warbler, Wilson’s warbler, western bluebird, yellow-rumped warbler, red-eared slider, bullfrog, pacific 
chorus frog. 
Sensitive Species Observed: None 
Other Sensitive Biological Resources Observed: None 

 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 24 of 38



 

DAILY MONITORING PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

Photo 1. 

General overview prior to 
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing south. 

 

Photo 2. 

General location of the new BLPH 
Nest_01 located directly under the 
pedestrian bridge. Photo is facing 
west.   

Agenda Item #7 
Page 25 of 38



 

Photo 3. 

General location of the new SOSP 
Nest_01 discovered by crew during 
maintenance activities within Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing east. 

 

Photo 4. 

Crew utilizing hand tools during 
trimming of cattails at Aliso Creek. 
Photo is facing southeast. 

 

Photo 5. 

General overview of post-
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing southeast. 

 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 26 of 38



 
 
 

 
DAILY MONITORING REPORT 

 

PROJECT & MONITOR INFORMATION 
Project Number:  20905 Date:  April 20, 2022 

Project Name:  Laguna Woods Village Start time:  0630 

Monitor(s):  Mauricio Gomez  End time:  1500 

WEATHER CONDITIONS 
START 

Temperature (°F): 56 Wind speed (mph): 1-3 Cloud Cover (%): 85 Precipitation (%): 0 

END 
Temperature (°F): 69 Wind speed (mph): 2-4 Cloud Cover (%): 0 Precipitation (%): 0 

 
SITE INFORMATION 

Site:  Aliso Creek in Laguna Woods 

Site Description:  The project is located within and adjacent to Aliso Creek, in the County of 
Orange, California. The creek is surrounded by emergent marsh vegetation 
such as cattails (Typha spp.), western ragweed (Ambrosia psilostachya), 
white sweet clover (Melilotus albus) and fleabane (Pulicaria sp.), among 
others. Non-native vegetation included Bromus spp., and Spanish sunflower 
(Pulicaria paludosa). 

Foreman/Superintendent: Hilario Contact info: 951-237-3973 

Crew:   

 
DESCRIPTION OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 

• Biologist monitored the crew during routine maintenance activities which included trimming of 
cattails within the creek and clearing of non-native species from the banks of the creek and on the 
upper terraces adjacent to the creek. Tools utilized during routine maintenance activities included 
hand blades, weed whippers, and hedge trimmers. No heavy machinery was utilized inside of Aliso 
Creek.  

• Crew resumed with maintenance activities downstream of ponding area #1 working their way 
towards ponding area #2.   

BIOLOGICAL OBSERVATIONS 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 27 of 38



• A clearance survey was conducted for nesting birds and the southwestern pond turtle (Acinemys
pallida; SWPT) prior to maintenance activities of the Project area. No SWPT were observed.

• The song sparrow (Melospiza melodia) nest 1 discovered on April 19, 2022, was monitored and
updated. The nest was monitored from 0630-0700. Two song sparrow individuals were observed
foraging adjacent to the nest and coming approximately within five feet of the nest. The pair did not
enter the nest and no other activity was observed inside the nest.

• One new nest was discovered during the clearance survey.
o Common yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas) nest 02 (COYE Nest_02): incubating

 The nest was observed at the base of the cattails approximately a foot above the
water line. A 25-foot buffer was established around the nest due to close proximity
of the nest to the pedestrian bridge and the pedestrian trail. Residents were
observed walking throughout the day and the pair did not show signs of stress. The
female was observed coming up several times during monitoring to meet the male
and was then observed going to same location at the base of the cattails. The female 
was also heard vocalizing near the nest. The crew avoided working within the buffer
and skipped downstream to avoid impacting the nest. The nest is located
approximately 45 feet upstream of the pedestrian bridge. GPS location: 33.600279,
-117.707224

• Patches of cattails were left within Aliso Creek and around the ponds to provide habitat for wildlife
and nesting birds.

• Bird activity was low to moderate throughout the day. Individuals were observed displaying
territorial behaviors, foraging, carrying nesting material, and flying through vegetation.

• A final sweep was conducted at the end of the workday, and no SWPT were observed.

CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
• A biological monitor is recommended during the maintenance activities located adjacent to active

nesting bird nests and within SWPT habitat (south of Avenida Sevilla bridge).

Species Observed: Allen’s hummingbird, American crow, Anna’s hummingbird, ash-throated flycatcher, 
black phoebe, bushtit, common yellowthroat, dark-eyed junco, great egret, hooded oriole, house finch, 
lesser goldfinch, mallard, pacific slope flycatcher, scaly breasted munia, song sparrow, spotted towhee, 
western bluebird, Wilson’s warbler, CA ground squirrel, red-eared slider, bullfrog, pacific chorus frog.  
Sensitive Species Observed: None 
Other Sensitive Biological Resources Observed: None 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 28 of 38



DAILY MONITORING PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

Photo 1. 

General overview prior to 
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing east. 

 

Photo 2. 

Crew utilizing hand tools during 
trimming of cattails at Aliso Creek. 
Photo is facing east. 

  

 

Photo 3. 

General overview of a crew 
member removing cattails outside 
of the BLPH Nest_01 and new 
COYE Nest_02 nest buffers. Photo 
is facing south.   

Agenda Item #7 
Page 29 of 38



 

Photo 4. 

General overview of post-
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing southwest. 

 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 30 of 38



 
 
 

 
DAILY MONITORING REPORT 

 

PROJECT & MONITOR INFORMATION 
Project Number:  20905 Date:  April 21, 2022 

Project Name:  Laguna Woods Village Start time:  0700 

Monitor(s):  Mauricio Gomez  End time:  1500 

WEATHER CONDITIONS 
START 

Temperature (°F): 50 Wind speed (mph): 0-1 Cloud Cover (%): 0 Precipitation (%): 0 

END 
Temperature (°F): 69 Wind speed (mph): 2-5 Cloud Cover (%): 2 Precipitation (%): 0 

 
SITE INFORMATION 

Site:  Aliso Creek in Laguna Woods 

Site Description:  The project is located within and adjacent to Aliso Creek, in the County of 
Orange, California. The creek is surrounded by emergent marsh vegetation 
such as cattails (Typha spp.), western ragweed (Ambrosia psilostachya), 
white sweet clover (Melilotus albus) and fleabane (Pulicaria sp.), among 
others. Non-native vegetation included Bromus spp., and Spanish sunflower 
(Pulicaria paludosa). 

Foreman/Superintendent: Hilario Contact info: 951-237-3973 

Crew:   

 
DESCRIPTION OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 

• Biologist monitored the crew during routine maintenance activities which included trimming of 
cattails within the creek and clearing of non-native species from the banks of the creek and on the 
upper terraces adjacent to the creek. Tools utilized during routine maintenance activities included 
hand blades, weed whippers, and hedge trimmers. No heavy machinery was utilized inside of Aliso 
Creek.  

• Crew began maintenance activities downstream of ponding area #4 working their way towards 
ponding area #5.   

BIOLOGICAL OBSERVATIONS 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 31 of 38



• A clearance survey was conducted for nesting birds and the southwestern pond turtle (Acinemys 
pallida; SWPT) prior to maintenance activities of the Project area. No SWPT were observed.   

• One new nest was discovered during the clearance survey.  
o Common yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas) nest 3 (COYE Nest_03): incubating 

 At 1035, as the biologist was walking along Aliso Creek, a female common 
yellowthroat was observed jumping out of a Spanish sunflower and was then 
observed calling. After closer look, a cup shaped nest was observed at the base of a 
Spanish sunflower approximately 5 feet away from the biologist and 6 inches off the 
ground. Three eggs were observed inside the nest. The biologist backed away and a 
50-foot buffer was established around the nest. At 1045, the female was observed 
returning to the nest. The female continued incubating throughout the day. At the 
time of discovery, the crew was working upstream approximately 200 feet away 
from the nest, but the crew skipped the buffer area to avoid impacts to the nest.  
GPS location: 33.596368, -117.710074 

• The common yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas) nest 1 (COYE Nest_01) discovered on April 18, 2022, 
was monitored 0900-1020 and updated. A 50-foot buffer had been established during the initial 
discovery. The pair did not show signs of stress as the maintenance crew continued with 
maintenance activities towards the buffer. Both the male and female were observed feeding the 
nestlings throughout the monitoring period. Once the crews reached the buffer, they relocated 
downstream away from the nest buffer in order to avoid impacts to the nest. GPS Location: 
33.597804, -117.709859 

• Patches of cattails were left within Aliso Creek and around the ponds to provide habitat for wildlife 
and nesting birds.  

• Bird activity was moderate throughout the day. Individuals were observed displaying territorial 
behaviors, foraging, carrying nesting material, and flying through vegetation.   

• A final sweep was conducted at the end of the workday, and no SWPT were observed. All excess 
material and debris were removed from the work area.  

CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
• A biological monitor is recommended during the maintenance activities located adjacent to active 

nesting bird nests and within SWPT habitat (south of Avenida Sevilla bridge). 

Species Observed: Allen’s hummingbird, American crow, black phoebe, bushtit, common yellowthroat, 
great egret, house finch, lesser goldfinch, mallard, mountain chickadee, pacific slope flycatcher, scaly 
breasted munia, song sparrow, spotted towhee, CA ground squirrel, red-eared slider, bullfrog, and pacific 
chorus frog.  
Sensitive Species Observed: None 
Other Sensitive Biological Resources Observed: None 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 32 of 38



DAILY MONITORING PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

Photo 1. 

General overview prior to 
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing southwest. 

 

Photo 2. 

General location of the new COYE 
Nest_03 upstream of the ponding 
area #6. Photo is facing west. 

  

 

Photo 3. 

General overview of maintenance 
activities within Aliso Creek. Photo 
is facing southwest.   

Agenda Item #7 
Page 33 of 38



 

Photo 4. 

General overview of post-
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing southwest. 

 

Photo 5. 

General overview of post-
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing southeast. 

 

Photo 6. 

General overview of post-
maintenance activities at Aliso 
Creek. Photo is facing north. 

 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 34 of 38



 
 
 

 
DAILY MONITORING REPORT 

 

PROJECT & MONITOR INFORMATION 
Project Number:  20905 Date:  April 22, 2022 

Project Name:  Laguna Woods Village Start time:  0645 

Monitor(s):  Mauricio Gomez  End time:  1045 

WEATHER CONDITIONS 
START 

Temperature (°F): 57 Wind speed (mph): 2-4 Cloud Cover (%): 35 Precipitation (%): 0 

END 
Temperature (°F): 65 Wind speed (mph): 1-2 Cloud Cover (%): 70 Precipitation (%): 0 

 
SITE INFORMATION 

Site:  Aliso Creek in Laguna Woods 

Site Description:  The project is located within and adjacent to Aliso Creek, in the County of 
Orange, California. The creek is surrounded by emergent marsh vegetation 
such as cattails (Typha spp.), western ragweed (Ambrosia psilostachya), 
white sweet clover (Melilotus albus) and fleabane (Pulicaria sp.), among 
others. Non-native vegetation included Bromus spp., and Spanish sunflower 
(Pulicaria paludosa). 

Foreman/Superintendent: Hilario Contact info: 951-237-3973 

Crew:   

 
DESCRIPTION OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 

• Routine maintenance activities concluded on Thursday, April 21, 2022. No maintenance activities 
occurred on Friday, April 22, 2022.    

BIOLOGICAL OBSERVATIONS 
• A post-construction survey was conducted for nesting birds and the southwestern pond turtle 

(Acinemys pallida; SWPT). No SWPT were observed.  
• The five active nests were monitored and updated:  

o Song sparrow (Melospiza melodia) nest 1 (SOSP Nest_01): inactive due to rain 
 The song sparrow nest was monitored from 0650 to 0730. Upon arrival, the nest 

was no longer visible or found. The water level had increased by more than a foot 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 35 of 38



from the April 21, 2022, overnight rain (Photo 1 and 2). No song sparrow individuals 
were observed in the vicinity of the nest. The nest appeared to have been washed 
out by the rain and is now inactive. GPS Location: 33.601040, -117.705190 

o Black phoebe (Sayornis nigricans) nest 1 (BLPH Nest_01): nest building 
 The black phoebe nest was monitored from 0850 to 0920. One individual on two 

separate instances were observed visiting the nest with nesting material. They both 
entered the nest for a very short visit before leaving. The black phoebe individuals 
were not disturbed by human activity or maintenance vehicles. The nest remains 
active. GPS Location: 33.600174, -117.707346 

o Common yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas) nest 1 (COYE Nest_01): feeding nestlings 
 The nest was monitored from 0927 to 0947. A pair of common yellowthroats were 

observed entering the nest with food five times in 20 minutes. The nest remains 
active. GPS Location: 33.597804, -117.709859 

o Common yellowthroat nest 02 (COYE Nest_02): incubating  
 The nest was monitored from 0740 to 0845. Upon arrival, the male was observed 

calling and moving through the cattails near the nest. The female was observed 
coming up from the nest location at 0843. Both individuals continued calling and 
remained close to the nest during the remainder of the survey. The nest remains 
active. GPS location: 33.600279, -117.707224 

o Common yellowthroat nest 3 (COYE Nest_03): incubating 
 The nest was monitored from 0952 to 1022. Upon arrival, a female common 

yellowthroat was observed moving through vegetation and foraging approximately 
50 feet downstream of the nest. At 1006, the female was observed approaching and 
entering the nest. The female remained on the nest for the remainder of the survey. 
The nest remains active.  GPS location: 33.596368, -117.710074 

• Patches of cattails were left within Aliso Creek and around the ponds to provide habitat for wildlife 
and nesting birds.  

• Bird activity was low to moderate throughout the day. Individuals were observed displaying 
territorial behaviors, foraging, carrying nesting material, and flying through vegetation.   

• A final sweep was conducted at the end of the workday, and no SWPT were observed.  

CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
• A biological monitor is recommended during the maintenance activities located adjacent to active 

nesting bird nests and within SWPT habitat (south of Avenida Sevilla bridge). 

Species Observed: Allen’s hummingbird, American crow, black phoebe, bushtit, common yellowthroat, 
great egret, house finch, lesser goldfinch, mallard, mountain chickadee, pacific slope flycatcher, scaly 
breasted munia, song sparrow, spotted towhee, CA ground squirrel, red-eared slider, bullfrog, and pacific 
chorus frog.  
Sensitive Species Observed: None 
Other Sensitive Biological Resources Observed: None 

 

 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 36 of 38



DAILY MONITORING PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

Photo 1. 

General 
location of 
the SOSP 
Nest_01 
observed on 
Tuesday, 
April 19, 
2022. Photo 
is facing 
east.  

 

Photo 2. 

Post-rain 
photo taken 
on Friday, 
April 22, 
2022, of the 
SOSP 
Nest_01. 
Photo is 
facing east.  

  

 

Photo 3. 

General 
overview of 
post-
maintenance 
activities 
and post-
rain event at 
Aliso Creek. 
Photo is 
facing 
northeast.   

Agenda Item #7 
Page 37 of 38



 

Photo 4. 

General 
overview of 
post-
maintenance 
activities 
and post-
rain event at 
Aliso Creek. 
Photo is 
facing 
southwest. 

 

Photo 5. 

General 
overview of 
post-
maintenance 
activities 
and post-
rain event at 
Aliso Creek. 
Photo is 
facing west. 

 

Agenda Item #7 
Page 38 of 38


	REGULAR MEETING  GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION LANDSCAPE COMMITTEE*
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Agenda Item 7 - Creek Update - June 8 2022.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page




